LIST OF SIGNIFICANT PROBLEMS AND SIGNIFICANT RESPONSIVE
PROGRAMMING DURING PERIOD COVERED OCTOBER 1, 2006 TO DECEMBER 31,
2006 BY KFXA-TV, CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA.

Public affairs and news programming televised by KFXA-TV during fourth quarter of 2006:

FOX NEWS AT 9(Local/News) Televised Monday through Sunday, 9-9:30 p.m.

GOOD DAY IOWA(Local/News) Televised Monday through Friday, 7-9 a.m.

FOX NEWS SUNDAY (Network/News) Televised Sundays 9-10 a.m.

AMERICA’S MOST WANTED(Network/Public Affairs) Televised Saturdays 8-9 p.m.

AG DAY (Syndicated/Public Affairs) Televised Monday through Friday 6-6:30 a.m.

FIRST BUSINESS(Syndicated/Public Affairs) Televised Monday through Friday 6:30-7 a.m.



A LIST OF SIGNIFICANT PROBLEMS AND SIGNIFICANT RESPONSIVE
PROGRAMMING DURING PERIOD COVERED OCTOBER 1, 2006 TO DECEMBER 31,
2006 BY KFXA-TV, CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA.

1. POLICE, THE COURT SYSTEM AND CRIME

AMERICA’S MOST WANTED-Network/Public Affairs-Saturdays 8-9 p.m.: One hour show
each week that asks for the public’s help finding criminals police are looking for that are still on
the run.

FOX NEWS AT 9 - Local/News-Wednesday, October 16, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: Fifteen years ago,

an Iowa graduate, Gang Lu went on a killing spree at the U of I Physics Dept and killed 5 people
including himself. The U of I will remember the victims at a special ceremony at the University’s
Cleary Walkway. A 1:25 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Monday, October 30, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: Cedar Rapids is the
safest large city in Iowa according to a report looking at crime rates from last year. Cedar Rapids
ranked 93" nationwide. A :21 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Thursday, November 30, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: Many prison
inmates across the country are logging onto Myspace on the Internet and have access to e-mail.
Deputy Warden John Fayram says his inmates have access to computers and the internet but it’s on
an in-house network. A :25 report.

GOOD DAY IOWA -Local/News-Thursday, November 30, 2006, 7-9 a.m.: The Microsoft trial
started in Des Moines. The case accuses Bill Gates of running a monopoly that overcharged
Towans millions of dollars. The lawsuit seeks about $330 million for lowans who have purchased
the software maker’s products since 1994. A :34 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9-Local/News-Friday, December 1, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: Nancy Listman of
Watkins is accused of stealing more than $300,000 from the Science Station between 2002 and
2004. A :20 report.

2. EDUCATION AND CHILDREN

FOX NEWS AT 9-Local/News-Friday October 27, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: A $22 million donation
from an alumni will allow the University of Dubuque to construct a recreation and wellness
center. A :25 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9-Iocal/News-Tuesday October 31, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: The deadline for voter
registration has passed and according to the Secretary of State’s office over 2 million lowans are
registered to vote this year, which is nearly 95% of eligible voters. Approximately 620,000 are
registered Republicans and 646,000 are registered Democrats. A 1:40 report.




FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Wednesday November 15, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: The Lisbon
school district has notified its 7 custodians that they are out of a job come December 27th. The
school district will use an outside contractor to cut costs A :40 report.

GOOD DAY IOWA -Local/News-Thursday November 30, 2006, 7-9 a.m.: Previously the Iowa
Board of Regents rejected all of the candidates for the U of I new president opening that were
recommended by the search committee. Now the Iowa Board of Regents may decide to reconsider
4 candidates. A 1:51 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Thursday November 30, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: It’s time to re-
educate winter driving. Slowing down and leave plenty of room for breaking and put together an
emergeny kit for your car. A :45 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Saturday December 2, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: There is a non-profit
organization called Heart Connection, which is responsible for sending kids from all over Iowa
who have or had cancer to an exclusive summer camp, free of charge, and it relies on the
generosity of others to make it happen.. A 1:45 report.

3. HEALTHCARE

FOX NEWS AT 9-Local/News-Monday October 30, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: Kentucky Fried
Chicken will drop the use of trans fats in its food and will use a newer, lighter oil by April 2007.
A :31 report.

GOOD DAY IOWA -Local/News-Tuesday October 31, 2006, 7-9 a.m.: There was a suspected
noro-virus outbreak at the Isle of Capri Casino and Hotel. A :16 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Thursday November 30, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: The Center for
Disease Control and Prevention has issued new recommendations for women who are thinking of
having a baby. Pre-natal care needs to begin well before a pregnancy starts along with taking pre-
natal vitamins, and quitting smoking and drinking alcohol. A :40 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9-Local/News-Friday December 1, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: Iowa is rolling out a
new Medicaid program over the next year that allows friends and family to be hired as caregivers.
The option allows elderly and disabled Iowans to hire someone they know or those caring for a
loved one to be compensated A :25 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9-Local/News-Saturday, December 2, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: On world aids day, the
nation as well as people from across the globe stop and think about how we can stop the spread of
this disease and eradicate it and help people living with it. A 2:05 report.

GOOD DAY IOWA -Local/News-Saturday December 2, 2006, 7-9 a.m.: A new review by the
doctors at the University of Iowa Hospitals and Clinics has outlined 4 therapies for men suffering
from testosterone deficiency. A 2:10 repott.

4 NEED FOR ECONOMIC GROWTH




FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Sunday, October 29, 2006, 9-9:30 pm: A new study by the
Inter-American Development Bank estimates that Latino immigrants living in lowa are expected
to send home $138 million this year. A :20 report.

GOOD DAY IOWA -Local/News-Monday October 30, 2006, 7-9 a.m.: The latest National
Account Pricing study found the fee charged to non-accountholders is now a record $1.64.
A :29 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Monday, October 30, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: lowa’s Department of
Revenue will announce how much of residential or commercial property is taxable. A 1:15
report.

GOOD DAY IOWA -Local/News-Tuesday October 31, 2006, 7-9 a.m.: Low income residents
can begin applying for the low income home energy assistance program. A :26 report.

GOOD DAY IOWA -Local/News-Thursday, November 30, 2006, 7-9 a.m.: Gas prices have
jumped 4 cents a gallon nationwide. A :18 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Saturday December 2, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: The state ban on
“touch-play” machines is cutting into profits for the Iowa Lottery. Sales are down about $20
million. A :25 report.

5. ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS

FOX NEWS AT 9-Local/News-Friday October 27, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: The first day of pheasant
hunting season brings 22% less pheasants. A :19 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9-Local/News-Saturday October 28, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: Dubuque has been
named one of Towa’s great places and will receive $900,000. Jowa’s great places is a program
that brings together the resources of state government to help lowa communities become great
places. A 1:10 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9-Local/News-Sunday, October 29, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: lowa farmers, able to
get back in the fields today after wet weather in some locations, are still enjoying high corn
prices. Lower yields in some areas of the country and increased demand for ethanol has helped
drive up the price of corn. A :30 report.

FOX NEWS AT 9 -Local/News-Sunday, October 29, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: While developers
make plans for a new rainforest and commercial development along the north shore of Lake Red
Rock, some people have concerns about retaining the natural beauty of the lake and shoreline.. A
1:58 report.

GOOD DAY IOWA -Local/News- Wednesday November 1, 2006, 7-9 a.m.: NASA has
approved a mission to repair the aging Hubble Telescope in May 2008 using the Space Shuttle
Discovery. A :23 report.




FOX NEWS AT 9-Local/News-Friday, December 1, 2006, 9-9:30 p.m.: Iowa once led the
nation in beef production, but hasn’t done that since the early 1970’s. Six other states led by
Texas now produce more beef than Iowa, but the rapid growth in the ethanol industry may soon
change that. Jowa produces more ethanol than any state in the country and a co-product of
ethanol production is distiller’s grain, which is fed to cattle as a high protein feed. A 2:06 report
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MANAGERS, AND PUBLIC AFFAIRS DIRECTORS
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LOUISE CARTER FBC

DECEMBER 19, 2006

NETWORK PRIMETIME/SPORTS/LATE-NIGHT PSA “4TH” QUARTER 2006 REPORT

BELOW IS THE LIST OF PSAS THAT AIRED IN 4RD QTR 2006:

PROGRAM

NFL NAT'L GAME  SUN 1P

NFL NAT'L GAME  SUN 1P
TIL DEATH SUN 7:30P

TIL. DEATH SUN 8:30P

PRISON BREAK MON 8P

VANISHED MON 9P

BONES WED 8P

HOUSE WED 9P

NANNY 911 FRI 8P

NANNY 911 FRI 8P

NFL REG'L GAME SUN 1P

NFL REG'L. GAME SUN 1P
NFL REG'L GAME SUN 1P
NFL REG'L GAME SUN 1P
NFL REG'L GAME SUN 1P
NFL NAT'L GAME SUN 4P
NFL NAT'L GAME  SUN 4P
NFL NAT'L. GAME SUN 4P
PRISON BREAK  MON 8P
JUSTICE MON 9P

JUSTICE MON 9P

TIME

1:27:00P
2:37:18P
7:39:21P

8:32:35P

8:06:49P

9:07:51P
8:06:38P

9:04:00P

8:10:07P

8:34:36P

1:36:10P
1:42:35P
2:16:09P
3:00:42P
3:54:39P
4:49:48P
5:37:06P
6:06:30P
8:09:10P
9:10:07P
9:48:31P

ISCI

XNPW 160410
XNPI 373330
XNPW 260120

FKFPADDLES30

YDZF 6053

XNPW 260220
XNPW 260220
CNMM 61301

XNPW 260220
AGTT 6113

XNPW 160910
XNPI 373330
XNPI 371130
XNPI 371130
XNPI 373330
XNPW 160910
XNPI 371130
XNP{ 373330
XNPW 260120

XNPW 260120

FKFPADDLES30

PSA DESCRIPTION LENGTH
NFL/U WAY/OMNIBUS 10
NFL/HISPANIC PSA 30
NFL/U WAY/"SWING” 20
KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION 130
PAUSE “PADDLES"

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG

“CONVERSATION REV" :30
NFL/U WAY/ “RAISE THE ROOF” :20
NFL/U WAY/ “RAISE THE ROOF” :20
AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL :30
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

NFL/U WAY/ “RAISE THE ROOF” :20
AMERICAN COUNCIL ON EDUC/
“OVERNIGHT” REV 30
NFL/U WAY “OMNIBUS” 10
NFL/HISPANIC PSA :30
NFL/ANTI-STEROID PSA :30
NFL/ANTI-STEROID PSA :30
NFL/HISPANIC PSA :30
NFL/U WAY “OMNIBUS" 10
NFL/ANTI-STEROID PSA :30
NFL/HISPANIC PSA :30
NFL/U WAY/"SWING” :20
NFL/U WAY/"SWING” :20
KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION :30

PAUSE "PADDLES"



DATE

10/15/06
10/16/06

10/20/06
10/20/06

10/20/06
10/22/06
10/22/06
10/22/06
10/22/06
10/23/06
10/23/06

10/28/06
10/28/06
10/28/06
10/29/06
11/01/06
11/02/06
11/03/06

11/04/06
11/05/06
11/06/06
11/07/06

11/09/06

11/10/06
11/10/06

11/11/06

PROGRAM

NFL NAT'L GAME  SUN 1P
HOUSE MON 8P
TRADING SPSES FRI 8P
TRADING SPSES FRI 9P
TRADING SPSES FRI 9P
NFL REG'L GAME SUN 1P
NFL REG'L GAME SUN 1P
NFL REG'L GAME SUN 1P
NFL NAT'L GAME ~ SUN 4P
JUSTICE MON 9P
JUSTICE MON 9P
COPS SAT 8P
COPS SAT 8P
COPS SAT 8:30P

WAR AT HOME  SUN 9:30P

RICH LIST WED 9P
HAPPY HOUR  THU 8:30P
VANISHED FRI 8P
AMW SAT 9P

WAR AT HOME SUN 9:30P

PRISON BREAK ~ MON 8P
HOUSE TUE 9P
THE OC THU 9P
VANISHED FRIOP
VANISHED FRI 9P
COPS SAT 8P

TIME

2:42:21P
8:43:19P

8:12:46P

9:14:31P

9:35:53P
2:18:12P
2:34:08P
2:37:24P
5:57:48P
9:10:59P
9:50:13P

8:02:10P
8:21:16P
8:32:07P
0:48:23P
9:21:35P
8:38:37P

8:31:10P

9:44:03P
9:38:22P
8:59:50P

9:42:13P

9:34:13P

8:08:47P

8:62:29P

8:22:15P

ISCI

XNPI 373330
CNMM 61301

XNPW 261320
FKFPADDLES30

XNPW 261320
XNPI 371130
XNPI 350630
XNPW 361730
XNPI 350630
XNPW 261020
FKFPADDLES30

XNPW 261020
EPSA 102430G10
XNPW 261020
EPSA 102430G10
EPSA 102430G10
EPSA 102430G10
CNMM 62301

EPSA 102430G10
EPSA 102430G10
EPSA 102430G10

CNMM 61151

FKFPADDLES30

TCFDF 1511
FKFPADDLES15

CNMM 62301

PSA DESCRIPTION LENGTH
NFL/HISPANIC PSA :30
AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL :30
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

NFL/U WAY/"WAITING ROOM” 20
KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION :30
PAUSE “PADDLES”

NFL/U WAY/"WAITING ROOM” 120
NFL/ANTI-STEROID PSA :30
NFL/HISPANIC PSA :30
NFL/U WAY/"RAISE THE ROOF” :30
NFL/HISPANIC PSA :30
NFL/U WAY/"WALL" :20
KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION :30
PAUSE “PADDLES"

NFL/U WAY/"WALL" 20
THE ONE CAMPAIGN "ONE VOTE" :30
NFL/U WAY/"WALL" :20
THE ONE CAMPAIGN “ONE VOTE"  :30
THE ONE CAMPAIGN “ONE VOTE”  :30
THE ONE CAMPAIGN “ONE VOTE" :30
AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL :30
“BOSS OF DRUGS”

THE ONE CAMPAIGN “ONE VOTE" :30
THE ONE CAMPAIGN “ONE VOTE”  :30
THE ONE CAMPAIGN “ONE VOTE" :30
AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL :15
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION :30
PAUSE “PADDLES”

MYSPACE DARFUR/GENOCIDE 15
KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION 15
PAUSE “PADDLES”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL. :30

“BOSS OF DRUGS"



DATE

11/11/06
11/11/06
11/12/06
11/12/06
11113/06

11/13/06
11/14/06

11/15/06
11/16/06
11/17/06

11/18/06
11/19/06

11/22/06

11/23/06

11/25/06
11/25/06
11/25/06
11/26/06

11/26/06
11/27/06
11/28/06
11/30/06

12/01/06

PROGRAM

AMW SAT 9P
MAD TV SAT 11P
NANNY 911 SUN 7P
NANNY 911 SUN 7P
PRISON BREAK  MON 8P
HOUSE MON 9P
STANDOFF TUE 8P
BONES WED 9P
TIL DEATH THU 8:30P
TRADING SPSES  FRI 8P
COPS SAT 8P
FAMILY GUY SUN 9P
FOX MOVIE WED 8P
FOX MOVIE THU 8P
COPS SAT 8P
COPS SAT 8:30P
MAD TV SAT 11P

AMRCN DAD  SUN 8:30P

NFL NAT'L GAME SUN 4P

HOUSE MON 9P
STANDOFF TUE 8P
THE O.C. THU 9P
JUSTICE FRI 8P

TIME

9:40:04P

11:56:09P

7:07:22P

7:20:42P

8:25:19P

9:43.:24P
8:36:27P

9:10:03P

8:37:53P

8:13:35P

8:13:04P
9:30:13P

8:17:36P

8:56:25P

8:21:59P

8:43:16P

11:56:13P

8:57:58P

5:54.46P
9:16:37P
8:56:52P
9:07:31P

8:09:52P

ISCl

CNMM 61301

YDZF 6063

FZAA 0054

FKFPADDLES30

CNMM 61151

TCFDF 1511
CNMM 61301

CNMM 62301

FKFPADDLES30

CNMM 61301

TCFDF 3011
YDZF 6043

YDZF 6053

YDZF 6013
FKFPADDLES30

CNMM 61301

YDZF 6043

YDZF 6063

XNPW 361830
YDZF 6083
SOFBULLY20
YDZF 6063

CNMM 61301

PSA DESCRIPTION

LENGTH

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL :30

“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG
“LITTLE BROTHER"

FOUNDATION FOR A BETTER LIFE
“| HOPE YOU DANCE”

KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION
PAUSE “PADDLES”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

MYSPACE DARFUR/GENOCIDE

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD DRUGS”

KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION
PAUSE “PADDLES”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

MYSPACE DARFUR/GENOCIDE

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG “PETE'S
coucH’

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG
“CONVERSATION" REV

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG “WHATEVER”

KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION
PAUSE “PADDLES"

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL :

“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG “PETE’S
COUCH’

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG “LITTLE
“BROTHER”

NFL/U WAY/"WAITING ROOM”
ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG "SLOM’
ANTI-BULLING

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG “LITTLE
“BROTHER”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL. :

“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

:30

.60

:30

15

15

:30

30

30

30

:30

:30

30
:30
:30

30

:30
:30
:30
:30

30



DATE

12/02/06

12/02/06

12/02/06

12/03/06
12/03/06

12/03/06

12/04/06
12/06/06

12/07/06

12/08/06

12/09/06

12/09/06

12/10/06

12/12/06

12/14/06
12/15/06

12/15/06

12/16/06

12/17/06
12/17/06
12/17/06

PROGRAM

COPS SAT 8:30P
AMW SAT 9P
MAD TV SAT 1P

NFL NAT'L GAME SUN 4P

AMERICAN DAD SUN 7P
AMRCN DAD  SUN 7:30P

BILLBOARD AWD MON 8P

BONES WED 8P
THE O.C. THU 9P
TRADING SPSES  FRI 9P
COPS SAT 8P
AMW SAT 9P
SIMPSONS SUN 7:30P
STANDOFF TUE 8P
THE O.C. THU 9P
JUSTICE FRI 8P
TRADING SPS FRI 9P
COPS SAT 8P

NFL REG'L. GAME SUN 1P
NFL NAT'L GAME SUN 4P

NANNY 911 SUN 7P

—
m

8:42:40P

9:57:26P

11:56:14P

5:45:43P

10:06:04P

10:37:09P

9:20:46P

8:06:50P

9:58:20P

9:51:25P

8:21:20P

9:57:38P

7:31:31P

8:08:22P

9:58:38P
8:59:27P

0:45:54P

8:21:50P

2:38:11P
6:07:12P

7.08:36P

1SCI

CNMM 62301

CNMM 61301

FKFPADDI.ES30

XNPW 361630
FZAA 0054

CNMM 61301

YDZF 6083
CNMM 61301

FKFPADDLES30

CNMM 61301

CNMM 62301

CNMM 61301

FKFPADDLES30

FKFPADDLES30

YDZF 6013
CNMM 61151

FKFPADDLES15

CNMM 61301

XNPW 361730
XNPW 160910
FZAA 0054

PSA DESCRIPTION

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD DRUGS"

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS"

KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION
PAUSE “PADDLES"

NFL/U WAY/"SWING"

FOUNDATION FOR A BETTER LIFE
“| HOPE YOU DANCE”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG “SLOM”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION
PAUSE "PADDLES”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS"

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD DRUGS”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS"

KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION
PAUSE "PADDLES”

KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION
PAUSE “PADDLES”

ONDCP/ANTI-DRUG "WHATEVER"

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION
PAUSE “PADDLES”

AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

NFL/U WAY/ “RAISE THE ROOF"
NFL/U WAY “OMNIBUS"

FOUNDATION FOR A BETTER LIFE
“| HOPE YOU DANCE”

LENGTH

:30

:30

:30

30

:60
:30

:30
:30

:30

:30

:30

:30

:30

130

30
16

16

:30

:30
110

:60



DATE PROGRAM TIME 1SCI PSA DESCRIPTION LENGTH

12/17/06 NANNY 911 SUN 7P 7:30:40P CNMM 61301 AD COUNCIL/PARENTAL CONTROL. :30
“BOSS OF BAD GUYS”

12/17/06 FAMILY GUY SUN 9:30P 9:49:06P FKFPADDLES30 KAISER FAMILY FOUNDATION :30
PAUSE “PADDLES"

s p| EASE CHECK THE JAN 5TH CYBERMAILER FOR PSAS THAT AIR DEC 19™ THRU DEC 31°", 2006 ****
*ONDCP STANDS FOR “OFFICE OF NATIONAL DRUG COUNCIL POLICY”
*PPDFA STANDS FOR “PARTNERSHIP FOR A DRUG-FREE AMERICA”

SHOULD YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS REPORT, PLEASE CONTACT LOUISE CARTER AT
(310) 369 - 1329.
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Fox Affiliates

Alison Brown

November 6, 2006

AMERICA’S MOST WANTED - Show #3868 (MW-2005) OAD 11/4/06

The following are the featured fugitives and others being sought by federal, state or local
authorities. The Update (if any) gives current status, previous references, or related
information.

Roy L Massey (Simple Burglary and Aggravated flight from an officer) -- Roy "Bubba"
Massey is a familiar face to AMW - and cops in California, Louisiana, Georgia, North Carolina,
Texas, and Florida. When Massey and his brother John were arrested in Hermosa Beach, Calif. in
August 1992 after years of thefts and harassing cops, law enforcement hoped their two-man
crime spree would finally end. What they didn't know was that a decade later, cops say Massey
would be out of jail and up to his old tricks, Described by those who knew him as an adrenaline
junkie, cops say Massey took to a quiet, crime-free life as a plumber in Walker, La. like a fish to
land. After only four years out of prison, police say Massey once again turned to a life of crime.
On July 3, 2006, police say Massey and an accomplice, Tony Baham, scoured neighborhoods
in St. Tammany Parish searching for a vehicle to steal. Police say Massey zeroed in on
a champagne-colored GMC Yukon. An alert neighbor spotted Massey and Baham snooping
around the neighborhood and called the cops. When officers showed up, they say Massey and
Baham were speeding off in the stolen SUV. Police were soon on Massey's tail and the chase
began. Cops say they followed Massey as he drove faster than 100 mph through the streets, at
one point almost hitting an officer as he tried to put down a spike strip. Luckily, the officer
jumped out of the way, and soon joined the chase in his cruiser. After a maze of twists, turns,
and near accidents, police say Massey tried to lose the cops by driving onto the interstate going in
the wrong direction. Massey led the chase into a wooded area, dodging trees before heading onto
a dead-end road that ended in a boat launch. Not to be stopped, Massey flew the truck off the
launch and landed it into the river before releasing himself and swimming to the opposite shore.
Baham followed suit, but cops soon caught up to him. On August 20, 2006, a warrant was issued
for Roy "Bubba" Massey. Cops arrived at the house he shared with his girlfriend and saw
Massey mowing the lawn. The police asked if he was Massey, and he answered with an
affirmative. Before cops could ask him further questions, they say he jumped off his lawnmower



and escaped into the woods. Cops tried to chase him on foot, but soon lost him again. Bubba
Massey is a wanted man once more. Massey is 42 years old, 5°9” and 155 pounds.

Richard McNair (Escape) -- McNair is a determined escape artist who was serving a life
sentence at the federal prison in Pollock, La. for killing a man during a 1987 burglary attempt in
North Dakota. According to Marshals, on April 5, 2006, McNair literally put himself into a
package and mailed himself to freedom. U.S. Marshals say McNair had been working in the
prison's UNICOR division, where his duties in the manufacturing area included repairing old,
torn mailbags. It was a job McNair held for a long period and Marshals believe he spend that
time plotting his escape. Investigators say that McNair put himself within a pile of several of
the repaired mailbags. The "package" was put on a pallet where-- somehow-- it was wrapped
in shrink wrap and fork lifted away to be delivered to a nearby warehouse. Once in the safety of
the unguarded warehouse, cops say McNair busted out of his "special delivery" and walked
through the unsecured area to freedom. According to police, McNair has staged escapes on at
least two other occasions, dating all the way back to his 1988 homicide arrest. The first came
when cops questioned him in the 1987 murder of a truck driver at a grain elevator near Minot,
North Dakota. McNair later pled guilty to the crime, which started out as a botched robbery and
ended in the brutal homicide. During the robbery and murder, another man was shot four times,
but thankfully survived. When Minot Police and Ward County Sheriff's detectives called in the
active duty United States Air Force Sergeant for questioning, he tried to go to the bathroom.
Thankfully, an alert city police officer frisked him before allowing him to walk away freely.
When he did, cops say they found a concealed handgun and that McNair later admitted he
planned to shoot his way out of the precinct. Once arrested for the crime, later that day, McNair
was handcuffed to a chair and left alone briefly. Investigators say he stole a detective's lip balm
and used the lubricant to squeeze his hands out of the cuffs and fled. Police say McNair led them
on a foot chase through town, leaping from rooftop to rooftop. Finally surrounded by police on
the rooftop of a downtown three-story building, cops say McNair attempted to leap to a tree
branch to get away, but missed the branch and landed on the ground, hurting his back. While he
was being held in the Ward County jail on murder and attempted murder charges in 1988, Ward
County Sheriff's deputies foiled yet another escape plot. They say that McNair literally chipped
away and removed two cinderblocks in his jail cell and had tied together his bed sheets. But,
before he had a chance to shimmy to freedom, deputies noticed the anomalies in his cell and
busted McNair. McNair pled guilty to the murder of the truck driver, Jerry Theiss. He was given
the maximum sentence-- life-- and sent to the North Dakota State Penitentiary in Bismarck.
Again, McNair didn't seem content to stay within prison walls. Officials say that in October of
1992, McNair escaped the state pen by clawing his way to freedom through a ventilation duct.
He remained on the loose for ten months until he was picked up in July of 1993 in Grand Island,
Neb. The North Dakota detention system deemed McNair problematic and asked him to be
transferred to the federal system, where he has been since his recapture in 1993. It's a little odd,
to say the least that a man who's been locked up for almost two decades would know so much
about computers. This is what authorities have learned about convicted murderer Richard
McNair; he's extremely good with his fingers and is computer literate. Authorities have learned
that he could be researching escort services, nudist sites, and he may be looking for love -- even
if he has to pay for it. Back in April 2006, AMW tips led police to two confirmed sightings of
McNair in Canada: shopping at a Wal-Mart and checking out a video at a Blockbuster in



Penticton, British Columbia. McNair speaks with a verbal tick where he repeats words like,
“yes” and “no”. He is 47 years old, 6” and 210 pounds.

Unknown Charles Scott White Killer (Murder) -- AMW's involvement in the case
started with a heartbreaking letter we received from Mike White. Mike is a veteran police officer
in south Florida. Mike's younger brother, Scott, was gunned down and senselessly murdered
during a robbery in Fort Lauderdale. Mike knew the Fort Lauderdale homicide unit was working
this case as hard as they could. But he felt helpless not being able to do anything to find his
brother's killers. In his letter, Mike wrote: "June 12, 2005 was a day that will haunt me for the
rest of my life ... I think of my brother every day. I can still hear his laugh and see his smile.
Sometimes when I'm at work and really busy, I want to pick up the phone and call him, but then
in an instant reality sets in, and I realize that there are no more phone calls. When Scott died, a
part of me died." When AMW began investigating Scott White's murder, we learned that Fort
Lauderdale Police have very little to go on. What they do know comes from the lone witness,
Billy Talbert. He's Scott's friend, and the manager of the Fort Lauderdale Bennigan's Restaurant
where Scott worked. According to Billy, he and Scott were closing up the restaurant after a busy
Saturday night. By four a.m. on the morning of June 12, 2005 the two men had finished their
duties and left the business through the back door. In the dark parking lot, Scott and Billy walked
to their cars. But before they got that far, they were ambushed by a masked man. Billy says the
gunman demanded money, so he gave him his keys and his cell phone. Then the attacker, who
was wearing dark clothes and a mask, tried to force Billy into the trunk of his own car. Thinking
about his family, he fought back, and his friend, Scott White, came to his rescue. That's when the
gunman yelled out what appeared to be a code of some sort: "1-8, 1-8." A second man with a gun
appeared, and ordered Billy and Scott to the ground. Instead, they fought back. Billy will never
forget what happened next. "I heard a gunshot. Then I saw my buddy Scott fall down. The guy
stood right over him again and shot him point blank." The two men fled on foot. Because of the
remote location, police believe a getaway car may have been parked nearby. Billy called 911, but
Scott White never had a chance. He died before help could arrive. Bernie Kosar is doing his part
to keep the focus on this unsolved case. Now, he and Scott White's family are depending on you
to do yours. The only information AMW has at this point is the suspects were right handed,
wore all black and one wore a black “ninja” type mask.

Gary Vue & Chong Vue (First Degree Murder) -- Cops say that on July 10, 2001,
"Oroville Mono Boys" gang member Gary Vue and his brother Chong were having a party at a
friend's house in North Minneapolis, when they spotted a car driving through the neighborhood.
The brothers got into a truck and went after the man they thought was a rival gang member. Cops
say they caught up with him, pulled up next to his car and that Gary fired at the driver, hitting
him in the forehead and killing him, At the beginning, investigators thought this crime was a
result of an ongoing dispute between the "Purple Brothers" and the "Oroville Mono Boys" gangs.
However, it turned out that the victim, 21-year-old Za Xiong, was no gangster spying on his
enemies, but an innocent man lost in the wrong place. In March this year, cops held a non-
custodial interview with Gary Vue in Sacramento, CA. Surprisingly enough, cops say Gary
confessed to killing Za Xiong. However, the confession caught them off guard and with no
warrants to arrest Vue; he was allowed to leave the station. That same day investigators
recovered the truck that the brothers allegedly used during the murder. Gary and Chong Vue were



indicted for First Degree Murder, but they are on the run. Cops believe Gary and Chong Vue may
still be in California or possibly Mexico. And they also know that Chong Vue may be going back
and forth between California and Minneapolis, where he has a wife and a son. Gary is 25 years
old, 5’57, and 150 pounds. Chong is 27 years old, 5°4” and 160 pounds.

Michael Akerly (Rape and Aggravated Assault) -- When a woman we'll call "Diane" was
ready to leave an Erie County, PA. bar, she decided to call a cab to take her home. But Diane
didn't have a phone, so cops say she accepted an offer from a fellow bar patron, Michael Akerly,
to use his house phone just down the street. Cops say Diane gratefully agreed to use the apparent
Good Samaritan’s phone, and the two left the bar together. But according to police, Michael
Akerly was anything but a Good Samaritan, Cops say after they arrived at his house, Diane
became nervous when she realized Akerly didn't have a phone in his house and wasn't in any rush
to find one. Cops say Akerly soon revealed the reason he'd lured Diane into his house.
According to police, he allegedly beat and raped Diane repeatedly, then took her across the street
to call a cab from a convenience store payphone as if nothing had happened. When the cab
arrived, cops say Akerly helped himself into the car and rode with Diane back to her house. Cops
aren't sure if he intended to rape her again there or not -- but they say if that was his plan, it didn't
happen for two reasons. When Diane arrived home, she immediately called her daughter's house.
When her future son-in-law answered, cops say Diane began asking random, irrelevant questions
to alert him something was awry. When he asked if everything was okay, she was able to say
"no" without giving Akerly the impression she'd told anyone she was in danger. Diane's brothet-
in-law rushed to Diane's house. At the same time, the cab who cops say dropped off Akerly and
Diane picked up another fare, who noticed the entire backseat of the car was covered in blood.
The cab driver called police and gave them Diane's address. But by the time police and Diane's
brother-in-law arrived, Akerly had fled. Akerly is 46 years old, 6’1” and 160 pounds.

Anita Sue Pinto-Aguilar (Tampering with Evidence) -- This is the main question cops
want to ask Anita Sue Pinto-Aguilar, mother of this 17-year-old girl, who was reported as a
runaway on June 2, 2006. Cops say Amber left her house on Friday June 2, 2006 and that it was
not uncommon for her to spend the weekend with her boyfriend. They say that, in fact, Amber
left her boyfriend's house on Sunday, June 4 at around 8:00 p.m. and walked back home. They
believe Amber's boyfriend may have been the last one to see her. But on June 21, Amber's
disappearance took an unexpected turn. After a 36-hour training session at the Eglin Air Force
Base, an Army Ranger student stepped out into a wooded area where he saw what appeared to be
human remains. He thought he was hallucinating from exhaustion, but when detectives arrived at
the scene, they confirmed what the student saw: a completely decomposed body. By using dental
records, detectives identified the remains as those of Amber Rohwedder on July 7, 2006.
After Amber's remains were positively identified, an investigation ensued to find out what
happened to her. However, cops say that their efforts to find answers were hampered by Anita
Pinto-Aguilar - because they believe she lied to them. When Pinto-Aguilar reported Amber
missing, she said that Amber took with her two tote bags of clothes: one blue and one black. Two
weeks later, a woman called Pinto-Aguilar to tell her that she had found Amber's driver's license
in a backpack purse and two tote bags in a shed behind her house. The woman said Pinto-Aguilar
picked up her daughter's belongings. After Amber's remains were identified, cops
interrogated Pinto-Aguilar. When asked about the tote bags, Pinto-Aguilar said that the Jast time



she had seen the tote bags was June 2, when Amber went missing. But cops were testing her.
They had gone to the shed and recovered the two tote bags inside a bag that Pinto-Aguilar's
supposedly picked up. The sea bag had Pinto-Aguilar's name on it. When cops showed the bags
to her, she said those were the bags that Amber took on June 2, 2006. But that was not all. Cops
also say they asked Pinto-Aguilar if Amber had a driver's license and Pinto-Aguilar told them
that she didn't have one, but that she had a permit, However, on July 11, investigators say they
went to Pinto-Aguilar's house and found Amber's Florida Driver's license inside Pinto-Aguilar's
purse. For these reasons, Anita Sue Pinto-Aguilar has been charged with Tampering with
Evidence. According to cops, Anita took off on or around July 24. They believe she's in Texas or
Arizona and that she may be hiding with her 13-year-old son.

Santos Aviles (Homicide) -- Santos Aviles often went to the Sierra Club Tavern in
Chicago for drinks. He would sit down, order a beer, and chat with the patrons. October 27,
1991 was no different....except for the person sitting next to him, Audon Lopez. During their
time at the bar, police say an argument erupted between Aviles and Audon. Bar fights in that
neighborhood usually ended with a bloody nose. But not this one. Two witnesses say they
saw Aviles pulls out a knife and stabs the victim. Then, they say Aviles kicked him while he was
down. Audon died soon after the attack. Aviles is 41 years old, 5’5" and 130 pounds.

“Princess” (Wanted for Questioning) -- On December 16, 2005, Crystal Urias and her
friend only known as "Princess" were having a day at the Park Place Mall in Tucson, Arizona.
But security officers inside a department store noticed that the two women weren't shopping, they
were shoplifting. Security guard Eugene King was assigned to make contact with Crystal and
Princess. He caught up to the shoplifting ladies in the parking lot. That's when police and
eyewitnesses say that things made a bizarre and dangerous turn. Police say Eugene King reached
the pair as they tried to make their getaway in Urias' white sedan. He tried to stop the pair before
Princess could close her passenger door, but police say Crystal Urias hit the gas and struck
Eugene, dragging him underneath the vehicle and wedging his body in the wheel well.

Shocked witnesses came running and tried to dislodge Eugene King. Surveillance video_shows
mall shoppers and employees confronting Princess as Crystal does the unthinkable...she hits the
gas again, tearing off across the parking lot. Princess starts running after Crystal, who slows the
car down long enough for Princess to hop into the moving vehicle. Sadly, police say that Eugene
King died one month later. He is survived by his wife in Tucson and his daughter in Los
Angeles. Authorities discovered that a family member had rented the white sedan one day prior
and lent it to Urias. Furthermore, another family member was able to identify Urias from the
mall surveillance footage on the day of the incident. At the scene, cops retrieved a cell phone left
behind by "Princess". They believe that images on the phone are of "Princess" and cops want to
speak with her about her involvement in this case. Urias turned herself in.

Larry Carter (Murder) -- Since the 7th grade, Latry Carter and Howard Williams were
friends. But as they grew older their similarities began to dwindle. Howard worked two jobs to
buy his condo in Chicago, Illinois and to upgrade his Chrysler with 22" chrome rims. On the
other hand, police say Carter worked hard to sell drugs and maintain his {riendships in the
Gangster Disciple Street Gang. Eventually, authorities say Carter could no longer ignore their
differences. They say Carter let his envy get the best of him and it made him turn on his own



friend. Howard's dead body was left lifeless in the street and a disturbed witness was left to
answer police questions. Larry Carter has a thin mustache and a sparse goatee.

DECEASED:

John “Woody” Woodring (Murder) -- A domestic violence shelter in Sylva, North
Carolina wasn't enough protection for Bonnie Woodring. Cops say her own husband, the man she
was escaping from, broke into the shelter at around 9:00 p.m. on September 18, 2006 and shot
her to death. According to authorities, on September 13, 2006, Bonnie Woodring took out
a Domestic Violence Protective Order (DVO) on her husband, John Raymond "Woody"
Woodring. But when she went home with their 13 year-old son to pick up their things, Woodring
allegedly assaulted her again and Bonnie had to be taken to the hospital. A warrant was issued
for Woodring's arrest and Bonnie entered a Domestic Violence Protection Center. But
unfortunately, cops say the center didn't help prevent Woodring from taking away her life. Cops
say John Raymond Woodring legally changed his name to Woody Woodring. Woodring has
several tattoos on his body. On his upper arm he has one of the famous cartoon characters--
Woody Woodpecker. One on his left arm he has USMC with a bulldog on top of it. Woodring
was born in Pennsylvania and has family there. Cops say he enjoys the outdoors and outdoor
activities like hunting, fishing, and boating. He loves talking on his cell phone and hanging out at
bars while drinking Bud Light beer. He also likes photography and even has his own photography
web site. (See Show #867, OAD 9/30/06) Woodring was found dead on a boat in North
Carolina with a note confessing to the murder.

CAPTURED:

John Warren Parsons (Murder, Escape) -- Police in Chillicothe, Ohio arrested John
Parsons on May 1, 2005, and he was charged with four counts of aggravated murder. Parsons
was accused of shootings and killing police officer Larry Cox. Parsons was being held on those
charges at the Ross County Jail when they say he executed an elaborate, well-thought-out plan
and escaped on July 29, 2006. Parsons escaped from a jail recreation area around 1 p.m, that
Saturday using a rope of toilet paper and bed sheets. He hid the makeshift rope behind a block
that he had dug out of his cell wall. His plan was thorough and clearly took a long time to
execute. Parsons has a scar on his abdomen and a tattoo on the back of his neck of two Angels
facing each other, a flaming skull tattoo on his right shoulder and a naked woman on his left calf.
His mother, Flesher has been arrested and charged with obstruction of justice for helping her son
escape. He is known as a car thief and has committed armed robbery in the past. Thanks to an
AMW tipster, investigators found Parson’s safe house miles from the county jail he escaped
from. The shed has made livable. He had created a toilet and cut an escape hole in the floor. He
left behind food, clothing and his beer preference, Bud Light. They, also, discovered that a
female had been with him in this safe house. (See Shows #860, #864, #865 and #867 OADs
8/12/06, 9/09/06, 9/16/06 and 9/30/06.) Accused cop killer John Parsons is back in jail thanks to



an alert tipster. About a month ago, two fishermen in the area had uncovered another shack that
Parsons had been living in just miles from downtown Chillicothe. The shack, along the Scioto
River and near thick woods, had been made in to a makeshift home by the crafty Parsons. He
was found in the shack all curled up and sleeping like a baby.

Note: If you have any information relating to fugitives or others featured on AMERICA’S MOST
WANTED, you may call 1-800-CRIME-TV.

Mailing address: America’s Most Wanted
P.O. Box CRIME TV
Washington, D.C. 20016

Or visit AMW on the World Wide Web at hitp://www.amw.com
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The following are the featured fugitives and others being sought by federal, state or local
authorities. The Update (if any) gives current status, previous references, or related
information.

Edwin Novas (Murder) -- A brutal murder outside of a Massachusetts nightclub has left
one family searching for justice. On Christmas Eve, 1999, Danny Guzman, a 26-year-old father
of two, was leaving a holiday party at the Tropigala nightclub when police say he was gunned
down by 20-year-old Edwin Novas. According to officials, Novas had an argument with another
bar patron earlier in the night, and was waiting outside for him to leave. But cops say that
when Novas opened fire, he killed Danny, an innocent bystander, and wounded another man.
Then, Novas disappeared. The murder weapon was recovered on December 29, 1999 -- by a 4-
year-old. The child was playing in an empty lot not far from the crime scene. Authorities
determined that the gun used in the killing had been stolen from a local gun factory by an
employee, a drug addict who supported his habit by trading guns for drugs and cash. Police say
the weapon was taken from an assembly line before it was stamped with a serial number. Novas
is from the Dominican Republic and may be hiding out in New York. He, also, goes by the
name Rafael Solano. Novas is 27 years old, 6°2” and 172 pounds.

Rosemary Godbolt-Molder (Homicide on a Government Reservation) -- On August 22,
1989, 5-year-old Rayshon Omar Alexander was taken to a hospital in Fort Bliss, Texas, with
serious injuries. Unfortunately, the little boy didn't survive. And what cops found after his
dead was very disturbing. An investigation revealed that Rayshon had numerous bruises
throughout his body -- among them a fractured skull and marks that cops say were the result of
physical abuse. The autopsy revealed what cops feared -- Rayshon had been a victim of child
abuse and was beaten to death. Cops say the main suspect was Rayshon's stepmother, Rosemary
Lorraine Godbolt-Molder. Godbolt-Molder was arrested and indicted by a Federal Grand Jury for



homicide. However, she placed bond and failed to report to her pre-trial Service Officer. No one
has seen or heard from Godbolt-Molder since 1992, but cops say she may be in Texas or New
Jersey. Godbolt-Molder has a scar on both knees. She is 39 years old, 5’1" and 123 pounds.

Henry Gonzalez (Rape of a child with force and Kidnapping) -- A Massachusetts family
thought their daughter was being driven safely to school each morning. But cops say, one
such ride turned into a nightmare for an innocent 13-year-old girl. On December 16, 1998,
Henry Gonzalez-Sanchez was supposed to be doing his job and picking up various students to
take them to school. At 7:20 a.m., Gonzalez picked up a 13-year-old special needs student as
part of his regular route. But, with only one passenger, cops say Gonzalez decided to take a
detour. When the young teen realized that Gonzalez wasn't going the right way, cops say she
asked why they weren't headed to her school. According to officials, Gonzalez told the girl that
they were going to his mother's house because he forgot something. But, cops say Gonzalez
really had another plan. Once at the house, cops say Gonzalez lured the young girl inside where
he repeatedly raped her. According to police, Gonzalez told the teen not to tell anyone about
what happened and then drove her to a local mall where he dropped her off. Alone and scared,
the young teen wandered to her school and reported the rape. The next morning Henry Gonzalez-
Sanchez was arrested, but then bailed out and disappeared. Gonzalez wears glasses and always
has a thin moustache. Gonzalez is 33 years old, 5’8" and 145 pounds.

Finnie Hawkins (Drug Conspiracy) -- FBI Agents are searching for Finnie Hawkins, an
alleged member of Chicago's “Black Stone P Nation” gang who's charged with selling multiple
kilos of cocaine on the streets of Chicago. Ironically, investigators keyed in on Hawkins
during their round-up of the rival “Black Disciples” gang. Agents say the BD’s used violence to
advance their narcotics trafficking. Murders, drive-by shootings and assaults were all
committed in the name of distributing major quantities of crack cocaine, heroin and matijuana.
The BDs were one of the largest gangs in the Windy City until they were dismantled in May
2004 when nearly 50 members were indicted on drug conspiracy charges. According to cops, one
of those arrested was Hawkins' cousin. Despite Finnie Hawkins' status as a member of a rival
gang, agents say that his cousin's BD membership put him in the game and say the BD’s and
Hawkins did business together, distributing multiple kilos of cocaine. Cops say Hawkins fled
before arrest following the indictments. Hawkins is 31 years old, 5°9” — 6’0” and between 140 —
180 pounds.

Unknown Chanel Petro-Nixon Killer (Murder) -- On June 18, 2006, 16-year-old
Chanel Petro-Nixon left her Brooklyn home in broad daylight to meet a friend a then to pick up a
job application for a summer job — then she disappeared. She never showed up to meet her friend
or to get the application. Four days later, Chanel's strangled body was found in a trash bag, just
blocks from her home. Investigators believe that she may have been grabbed off the street and
held hostage for two days. Several key clues were discovered during their investigation - Chanel
had not been fed for two days and her killer took off her shoes before putting her in the trash bag.
Chanel's cell phone (a silver Sanyo Sprint phone model 8200) and her shoes (size 6 1/2 white



Nike Air Jordan retro with green trim and the number 14 on them) are still missing. The police
are urging anyone to come forward with information in this case. (See Show #860 OAD 8/12/06)
Reverend Al Sharpton says someone in his community knows what happened. That's why he's
teaming forces with AMW to urge his community to step up and say what they know. He is even
telling the community if they don't feel comfortable talking to police, they can talk directly to
him through America's Most Wanted. Reverend Sharpton says, "It's personal to me 'cause it
happened where I grew up. I mean this is the neighborhood I started preaching in. This is the
neighborhood my mother raised me in. This is the neighborhood where I know everybody. And,
we can't just allow our children to be murdered and thrown out like trash." Reverend Sharpton
canvassed Brooklyn streets with AMW producers trying to get people to come forward and say
what they know. He also aired an extended segment about this case on his nationally syndicated
radio program "Keepin' It Real with Rev. Al Sharpton."

Lamont Paris (Attempted Homicide and Drug trafficking) -- Detroit federal agencies are
searching for Lamont Paris. They say in less than 30 years of life, the young man has left a trail
of death and violence in his wake. On April 22nd, 2005, a federal postal worker was leaving his
job in the wee hours of the morning. It was his regular routine. As he left the post office around
2 am, shots rang out and the postman was struck twice in the neck. Two men, whom the postal
worker didn't know, ran from the scene. Police say that one of the shooters was Lamont Paris.
Federal agents believe that the postman was mistakenly identified. The victim has the same name
as the cousin of a drug lord who rivaled an organization that investigators say Lamont Paris was
working for. The postman survived. The Drug Enforcement Agency and the Internal Revenue
Service agents are searching for Paris as part of a bigger, 31-count drug and money laundering
indictment around the dismantling of the Lewis Drug Organization in the Motor City. In addition
to the drug and money laundering charges, cops say Paris killed at least two men at the behest of
the leader of the organization, Quasand Lewis. In April of 2006, Quasand Lewis pled guilty to
charges of narcotics trafficking and money laundering. Lamont is 30 years old, 6’1" and 178
pounds.

MISSING:

Jimmy Trindade

Age: 55 years old Height: 6°1”

Weight: 220 pounds

James "Jimmy T" Trindade was a man's man, an all-around athlete who had kicked the ocean's
butt for most of his life. Water skiing, diving, boating, deep sea fishing - Jimmy T loved
everything that had to do with the water. And when he wasn't at sea, he was pushing it hard on

land, big game hunting, kickboxing and racing Porsches. Family and friends also meant a lot to
Jimmy T. He and his best friend, Roger Gamblin, went back a long way and shared a passion for
























fishing the turquoise-blue waters around Spanish Cay in the Bahamas. They'd been taking their
families there for years and their post-holiday parties were legendary. Jimmy T was always

the chef, serving up the best stuffed shrimp you've ever tasted. Simply put, Jimmy T lived for
those trips to the islands. Everyone who knows Trindade says you'd be hard pressed to find
someone who could handle a boat better than him. It's the the morning of January 12, 2006, and
the annual festivities on Spanish Cay are coming to an end. It's time to head for home in Florida.
Jimmy T takes the helm of Roger Gamblin's 38' Donzi, a sport fishing boat with three 275 hp
Mercury outboard motors capable of reaching speeds in excess of 60 mph. Gamblin had bought it
only a few weeks earlier, after it was featured in the movie "Miami Vice." On board with Jimmy
T are four coolers full of leftover steak, shrimp, and booze. Gamblin himself is still on the island
with a handful of stragglers. Trindade's wife of 16 years, Candace, and his 14 year-old daughter
Taylor are already home. Jimmy T steers the long boat out of Spanish Cay, followed by two other
boats owned by Roger Gamblin. Gamblin's 23-year-old son, Chris, is piloting a 35' Donzi, and
Chris' friend Brian Pratts is behind the wheel of a 22" Angler. According to friends on the island
of Grand Cay, they stopped there about two hours later for food and fuel. After filling all three
boats to capacity, they come in past Memory Rock, set a course for Boynton Inlet, and throttle
down. With three big Mercs, Jimmy T's Donzi pulls ahead fast. Suddenly, Brian Pratts reports a
problem with his oil tank. Chris Gamblin stops when he sees Pratts fall behind. But Jimmy T
keeps going, and is soon out of sight. Brian can't reach Chris on his VHF, but he does

reach Jimmy T, who says he'll slow down, idle along and wait for them to catch up. One of

the big Donzi's two Global Positioning (GPS) systems will later show that Jimmy T's boat was
about five miles ahead of the others, about 45 miles off of the Florida coast. After about half an
hour, Chris and Brian hear Jimmy T's voice crackling over the radio on open channel 16: "U.S.
Coast Guard!! U.S. Coast Guard!!" Those would be the last words that they or anyone else would
hear from him. Chris and Brian alerted the Coast Guard that they'd lost contact with Jimmy T.
But an official search couldn't be launched until he was officially logged as "overdue," and that
wouldn't be for hours. So Roger Gamblin hired two pilots to begin a private search. But that
would be delayed as well. President Bush was visiting Florida, and Air Force One wasn't
scheduled to leave Palm Beach International Airport until 7:25 PM. No other aircraft could take
off until it was gone. When one plane finally went up, the pilot searched for several hours, and
found nothing. The FBI opened an investigation. They looked at Jimmy’s inner circle of
friends. Jimmy was wearing a Rolex watch and a one of a kind yellow gold shark pendant with a
conch pearl in the middle and a shark’s tooth anchoring the bottom. He is 55 years old, 6’1" and
220 pounds.

CAPTURED:

Jaroslaw Ambrozuk (Negligent Homicide) - as known as Jerry or Michael Lee Smith.
On August 28, cops say a woman from Plano, Texas contacted the Flathead County Sheriff's
Office in Montana and the AMW Hotline to report she knew that Jaroslaw Ambrozuk was living
in Plano under a false identity. After Ambrozuk disclosed his true identity to the caller, and that
he had been profiled on AMW, she decided to do some investigating on her own. A Google
search turned up a newspaper article in the Daily Inter Lake (a Kalispell, Montana newspaper)






that featured an old high school yearbook photo of Ambrozuk. Unfortunately for Ambrozuk, it
also mentioned that he was a wanted man. Following up on the tip from the caller, cops were
able to determine that in 1983 Ambrozuk had obtained a false identity in Texas under the name
of Michael Lee Smith, complete with a false date of birth and social security number. He had
even been arrested in Dallas for burglarizing vehicles in 1983 and 1984, but police never
discovered his false identity. Detectives arrested Ambrozuk on August 30 on a negligent
homicide charge. After 24 years, he's the longest running AMW fugitive to be captured.

Note: If you have any information relating to fugitives or others Sfeatured on AMERICA’S MOST
WANTED, you may call 1-800-CRIME-TV.

Mailing address: America’s Most Wanted
P.O. Box CRIME TV
Washington, D.C. 20016

Or visit AMW on the World Wide Web at http.//'www.amw.com
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The following are the featured fugitives and others being sought by federal, state or local
authorities. The Update (if any) gives current status, previous references, or related
information.

Henry Calucag (Theft, Identity Theft, and more) -- Bank fraud convict Henry Jacinto
Calucag is currently big news on the island paradise of Hawaii. Federal, state and county task
forces are investigating a trail of theft, fraud and disappearances that has allegedly been left by
Calucag over the last 10 years. Police in Hawaii say three former business partners of Calucag
all embarked on similar trips to the Philippines under the auspices of buying property, but none
of them ever returned home. Arthur Young's disappearance back in 1990 was the first. Douglas
Ho left with Calucag in 2004 and was reported missing by his family in January 2005. The third
associate, John Elwin, left for the Philippines in carly May of 2006. Police say his body was
discovered in a province outside Manila with gunshot wounds to the head and chest. According
to police documents, money, property or both money and property formerly belonging to these
men wound up in Calucag's possession. Investigators on the Calucag case say he's a master con
artist who may be responsible for swindling millions of dollars in cash and property away from
their rightful owners. Calucag's present charges are first-degree identity theft, first-degree theft,
and forgery for allegedly forging a document to assume title of a Kauai property previously
owned by Elwin, During their ongoing investigation of Henry Jacinto Calucag, law enforcement
in Hawaii has been steadily building a portrait of the man with at least 18 aliases. Although he's
a convicted con artist, police say Calucag was able to infiltrate Hawaiian society. Cops say
Calucag also claimed to own ProNetwork Center -- a successful tech company that allegedly did
business with the Office of Homeland Security. However, the address was a single mailbox in
the Philippines and there was no Homeland Security contract. Authorities tell AMW that they
uncovered sources who knew Calucag and shared some interesting information: the would-be
millionaire drove a beat-up car, lived above a friend's paint shop and at one time asked a friend
for a small loan. Calucag was also known under the alias 'Hank Jacinto' within the elite polo
community on Hawaii...the same community where he met John Elwin back in 1994. Police say



that Calucag at one time was asked to leave a particular polo club after he allegedly stole a pair of
one-of-a-kind riding boots from another club member. However, authorities say that Calucag has
had more than a few run-ins with the law. According to federal court documents, he spent eight
months in a federal prison after pleading guilty in 1995 to five counts of bank fraud in which he
deposited bogus checks into accounts he opened using false names and withdrawing the money.
In 1999, he began serving an additional 16 months in federal prison after admitting he bought a
sport utility vehicle and obtained leases on computers using false names and false credit histories
while on parole. In November 2006, America's Most Wanted went to the Philippines to look into
the businesses that Calucag had established on the island. Up until his arrest in September,
Calucag's website for his company ProNetworkCenter boasted annual revenue of $65 million
dollars, 63 employees, and Department of Defense contracts. However, after Calucag's arrest the
website no longer mentioned 'Hank Jacinto' or ProNetwork's annual earnings and reduced the
staff to only sixteen. Furthermore, America's Most Wanted went to the location listed on each of
Calucag's businesses' websites. ProNetwork Center, Philippine Escrow & Title Corporation and
an orphanage program called The Philippine Mission Foundation all listed a business office in
Quezon City. However, when AMW arrived at the address, it didn't look like the offices

of multiple multi-million dollar corporations. The offices housed only a few desks and
neighboring businesses we interviewed said workers came and went with little frequency.
Prosecutors back in Hawaii say that Calucag is a career criminal who has been duping and
conning the business people of Hawaii for years and the ventures he started in the Philippines
point to more of the same. With his capture, they hope that a prolific con man's legacy of deceit
has been ended.

Marjan Rroku (Murder) -- When Ornella Canaj came to the United States, cops say it
was to escape a world of torment at the hands of a man she once considered a friend -- Marjan
Rroku. It all started when 18-year-old Ornella moved to Tirana, Albania to attend college.

Her 15-year-old sister, Alda, joined her and began attending a local Albanian high school. The
two sisters lived together in an apartment near campus, and attended Bible study at a local church
once a week. It was there that the girls met 27-year-old Rroku. At first, Rroku came across as a
friendly man. He said he worked for an American company and was involved with the local
Democratic Party. Neither Ornella nor Alda knew Rroku's real occupation or intentions.
Although the Bible study members often got together as a group, Rroku began seeing Alda
privately. In spring 2000, Rroku told a surprised Alda that he was in love with her and wanted to
get married and move to Italy. But Alda told Rroku she was too young for him, and stressed that
she needed to finish school. When she went home for summer break, she seemed to forget about
him. But Rroku did not give up his conquest and when the sisters returned to school in the fall
authorities say Rroku showed Alda a side of him neither sister would have suspected. In October
2000, he showed up at Alda's school with a fake identification card that added one year to her
age, making her 16. When Alda refused to take it, cops say Rroku pulled out a gun and
threatened her, telling her he wasn't really a businessman, but a secret policeman. On November
20, 2000, Ornella came home to find Alda crying in bed, with bruises all over her face and body.
At first, Alda told Ornella that a drunken man had attacked her. But Ornella felt something
wasn't right and pressed the issue. Eventually, Alda revealed the truth to her sister -- Rroku had
beaten her after she refused yet again to marry him and move to Italy. This time, Alda told
Ornella that Rroku had met her at school and taken her to his apartment. There, he'd pulled out



his gun and told her she had eight minutes to agree to marry him and move to Italy. Rroku
allegedly beat her up, but didn't use the gun on her. When the sisters spoke with local
authorities, they were informed that Marjan Rroku was indeed a SHIK; an Albanian secret police
officer. When a newspaper article reported the incident, Rroku began threatening both sisters.
Soon after the incident, Ornella and Alda's parents, Mbarime and Faslli, moved to Tirana along
with their youngest daughter, Desilda, to watch over their two oldest daughters. However, this
would be a futile effort. According to Ornella, Rroku harassed the family on a daily basis. Each
time, her father would report the incident to the local police, but it seemed Rroku was
untouchable. On March 29, 2001, Ornella had a break from her own classes and went to see
Alda at her school. She found her sister in tears. Rroku had visited the school and threatened her
again, Ornella offered to walk her sister home, but Alda insisted she wanted to wait for her
mother. Later that afternoon, Rroku was waiting. He grabbed Alda, but the mother and daughter
fought back. That's when cops say Rroku pulled out his gun and shot Alda and Mbarime both
seven times, killing them both. Rroku was never arrested, but the deaths of Alda and Mbarime
Canaj set off a series of protests against police corruption. Rroku was eventually found guilty of
the murders in absentia. However, Ornella, her father, and her youngest sister, Desilda received
threats from relatives and friends of Rroku and never felt safe after the murders. Eventually
Ornella moved to the United States while her sister was sent to another country. In the

US, Ornella finally began to feel safe from the man who had broken up her family. But one day
in September 2005, she came face to face with the man from whom she fled. Each morning,
Ornella traveled on the Washington, DC Metro train to work from the Rosslyn, VA station to the
King Street station in Alexandria, VA. Standing on the station platform one morning, just as the
train approached, she saw Rroku pass in front of her. Rroku entered a train car and

Ornella forced her way onto the same train. She says she sat a few seats away and watched as he
seemed to hide his face behind other passengers on the train. Ornella says Rroku was wearing
sunglasses and a hat while riding on the dim train. Now, Ornella is terrified that Rroku has
tracked her down and is trying to finish off the rest of her family. Rroku speaks English and
Italian. He is 32 years old, 5°9” and 170 pounds.

Orlando Hamilton (Murder and Resisting an Officer) --Orlando Hamilton has been on
the run since 1989 when cops say he shot and killed a 22 year old man in the Bronx, NY who
was "on his turf." Cops say the alleged enforcer for a drug trafficking organization has evaded
capture for more than 17 years by purchasing social security numbers and assuming the identities
of substance abusers. Hamilton has been quite busy during this time, breaking the law under
several different names. In late 1989, Hamilton was arrested in Washington, DC under the
alias Mark Campbell for firearms violations. He fled and cops didn't see him again until 1992
when he was arrested as Dion Barnes for selling drugs in Winston-Salem, NC. The elusive
fugitive fled and resurfaced as Christopher Mitchell in 2001, when he was stopped for a traffic
violation while leaving the home of a known fugitive. Cops arrested Hamilton, who they say was
very evasive and uncooperative. In jail, cops requested to have Hamilton fingerprinted to verify
his identity. Cops say that Hamilton told them they'd have to kill him to get his prints. Finally,
they managed to print him, but Hamilton posted a $50k bond and disappeared. A fingerprint
match returned three days later confirmed his true identity. For the past few years, cops say
Hamilton's been working as muscle for large drug smuggling rings around the U.S. Pagers
belonging to Hamilton and seized by police indicated that he had contacts in all major US



cities. According to investigators, after a confidential informant ready to provide information on
Hamilton's location was murdered in 2002, the trail went cold. That murder remains unsolved.

Beatriz Hernandez (4 Counts of Felony Murder) -- Cops say on December 14, 2005,
Beatriz Hernandez and three men were hanging out at a gentlemen's club in Paterson, New
Jersey. But the night was still young for them and according to cops, they decided to go to an
after-hours club for more fun. When they got to the club, cops say Hernandez and the men
started drinking and gambling. It was around 3:30 a.m. when the night turned tragic. Cops
say Hernandez's friends attempted a robbery, but it went out of control and the men shot four
people in the head, killing them. Cops believe Hernandez was present when the shooting
occurred, but left the club. According to police, the suspects fled the scene on foot but
Hernandez, who was circling around the area with her car, saw them and decided to pick them
up. Cops say Hernandez also witnessed them splitting up the money from the robbery and then
dropped them off. Hernandez smoke Newport cigarettes and may be in North or South Carolina.

Enrique Enriquez (Possession of Narcotics and Possession with intent to sell) -- U.S.
Marshals have been after alleged drug pusher Enrique Enriquez for almost two decades.
Enriquez, a big-time body-builder and certified diver, is charged with distributing two kilograms
of powder cocaine. He pled guilty to one of two counts and was permitted to stay out on bond
until the court date for his sentencing. Enriquez never showed up for his September 3, 1987 court
date.

Instead, cops say he fled to New York, where he stayed for a brief period of time before moving
to Florida. In Florida, he worked as a certified personal trainer. Marshals say Enriquez then
relocated to California where they believe he worked for a marina and had to be rescued from a
capsized boat in 1994, Marshals are swimming through records to try to find information on who
rescued him, which could prove to be a helpful tip. Marshals say Enriquez is a dangerous
fugitive, known to carry a gun in his gym bag. They say he has been in fights over steroid sales
at the various gyms. He is also described by Marshals as a momma's boy who is quite quirky--
he was once known to ride a flourescent bicycle everywhere and is very finicky about his meals
(skinless breast of chicken and brown rice.) Enrique Enriquez is a bodybuilder who cops say
may be selling steroids and other drugs to gym owners and sports coaches.

Daniel “Steamer” Keo Kung (Murder) -- Police say that in front of dozens of cars and
four fire engines, the man walked up to Ponarith, pulled out a gun and fired two fatal shots.
While Ponarith lay dying in his car, the shooter fled. With the help of dozens of witnesses,
police were able to trace the car back to Samnang "Demon" Meas, 23, and identify the shooter as
Daniel "Steamer" Keo Kung, 24, a member of the Tiny Rascals Gang, which is considered one of
the largest and most dangerous Asian gangs in the country. According to police, Kung and Meas
were looking for Ponarith's brother for bad-mouthing the gang. Kung was out for revenge, but
got the wrong man. Police say the man Kung allegedly killed had dropped out of high school to
support his divorced mother. Cops immediately headed to Meas' house, looking for him and
Kung, but missed the men by just a few minutes. Authorities say the two were headed to pick up
their friend, Jonathan Guzman, on their way out of town. They stopped in Providence, R.L to
drop off Guzman at his girlfriend's house then headed down the coast to Spartanburg, 5.C. Cops
were able to trace the fugitives to a Rascals Gang safe house, but when they raided the



house in South Carolina, they were long gone. Meas and Kung had traveled to California to
spend some time on the beach. In September 2004, an informant told police that Meas and Kung
were at a house in Fresno, CA, and when investigators raided, they found Meas sleeping, but no
sign of Kung. Kung has a tattoo of “Rascals” across he back.

An Soon Kim (Human Trafficking) -- In March of 2006, police say they listened to
recorded phone calls of An Soon Kim discussing her involvement in a major conspiracy.
Authorities say Kim told the caller she needed more girls... to force them into prostitution. Cops
say Kim has been smuggling young Korean women into America under a noble disguise. They
say Kim preyed on the women's hopes and dreams that they could come to the states and make
more money to bring back to their family. But, in truth, she was allegedly transporting them to
make them into sex slaves. Police say the women were told that if they tried to leave their family
would be harmed in Korea. Police say Kim would provide the Korean women with false
immigration documentation to enter America legally. Then, authorities believe the women were
transported to brothels disguised as spas/massage parlors, where they were placed under close
supervision. Kim played the role of an alleged enforcer who would take away all of their
passports and documentation to prevent them from leaving. Police say many times the women
were told that if they tried to leave they would be handed over to United States law enforcement
or that their families in Korea would be harmed. Authorities say Kim's sexual exploitations in
the New York area have linked her and many others to a string of brothels along the East Coast.
After cracking down on a dozen brothels in D.C, Maryland, Pennsylvania, and New York police
have gathered tons of evidence to put a stop this evil trend. Police documented criminal
complaints that the girls working at these spa/parlors would service sometimes 70 men in one
weekend. Police are offering benefits and services to the victims, including referral for
counseling, medical services, legal asisstance, food, housing, and much more. Authorities are
not certain where Kim may be but they hope someone knows where she is hiding. Her last
known location was in Flushing, New York and police believe she may still be in the area or may
have fled back to Korea.

Maria Velasquez-Reyes (Sex Trafficking) -- Maria "Rocio" de Los Angeles Velasquez-
Reyes is wanted on sex trafficking charges. Velasquez-Reyes is a relative of the Carreto family
who allegedly ran a sex slave group out of the Corona area of Queens. Agents say the operation
began in the 1990s and ran all the way until the indictment in 2004. Federal indictments accuse
the Carreto family of running a sex trafficking operation. They say the family lured women from
economically depressed areas of Mexico to the United States and then turned them out as
prostitutes on the streets of Queens, New York. Following the indictment, several members of
the Carreto family were arrested in Tenancigo, Mexico. But, Velasquez-Reyes has eluded
authorities. Agents say Velasquez-Reyes was an important part of the Carreto prostitution ring.
They say that she was an enforcer for the operation and also acted as a "trainer" for the new
prostitutes. Investigators say that Velasquez-Reyes worked the streets herself as a prostitute for
the family. According to the indictment, the Carreto family used a combination of threats,
violence and sexual abuse to control the sex slaves. Because investigators think Velasquez-
Reyes played such a big part in the violence and intimidation they fear she may be up to her old
tricks with a new batch of victims.



Un Sun Lee Brown (Human Trafficking) -- Cops say Un Sun Brown was running an
illegal storefront in downtown Washington D.C. She is charged with a number of violations
related to conspiracy in human trafficking, and using women for prostitution. Investigators say
Brown was the manager of the "14K Spa," located in Washington, D.C. When Brown was
allegedly running her brothel in the nation's capital, investigators say she was living in Silver
Spring, Maryland. Brown uses a few different aliases, and it's hard to tell where she is now.
Hopefully someone will recognize her.

James Joseph ""Whitey' Bulger (Racketeering and Extortion) -- In the tough
working-class neighborhood of "Southie," just south of Boston, locals say that a young man
growing up there has only two career choices: the priesthood or the law. One of the Bulger
brothers went on to make laws, becoming the President of the Massachusetts State Senate and
holding the post for eighteen years. The other, who became known as Whitey Bulger, went on to
break laws, becoming the boss of the ruthless Irish Winter Hill Gang. Police say that Whitey had
his fingers in every drug deal and illegal bet in Southie, swiftly becoming respected, even
legendary, in the Boston underworld. Authorities claim that he was able to consolidate power
through an historic truce with the Italian Mafia in Boston, whereby they respected each other's
boundaries, and even collaborated on their nefarious schemes. The Massachusetts State Police
were determined to get Whitey behind bars. But every time they got an authorized wire tap,
every time they set up surveillance, Whitey dodged their net. It was almost as if he knew.... On
January 10, 1995, the federal grand jury handed up a RICO indictment with Whitey's name on it.
True to form, Whitey was ahead of the law, and disappeared from sight. However, the
indictment netted five other members of the Irish Winter Hill Gang, including Whitey's top
lieutenant, Steve "The Rifleman" Flemmi. What Flemmi had to say shocked everyone, gangsters
and law enforcement alike. Flemmi claimed that both he and Whitey were actually government
informants, leaking information to the FBI on their supposed partners in the Italian Mafia for
nearly 30 years. He even claimed that they had been tipped by the Feds before the indictments
came down, allowing Whitey to make a clean getaway. Legal hearings will determine whether
Flemmi's allegations are true, and whether Flemmi and Whitey's alleged informant status makes
them immune from prosecution. When the FBI indicted Bulger, Catherine Greig, his mistress,
joined him on the road as they traveled as any retired couple through the historic sites and Indian
reservations of the United States. So strong was her dedication to the suspected underworld
mastermind that she abandoned her pet poodles and extensive collection of Hummell figures.
Authorities now know that one of Whitey's stops was the quiet Louisiana enclave of Grand Isle.
No one in this tight-knit community suspected that Whitey was a northeastern mob boss as he
came and went Greig, paying for his rental cottage in crisp $100 bills. Posing as "Uncle Tom and
Aunt Helen," they seemed to blend right in. But now Uncle Tom and Aunt Helen have
disappeared and the hunt is still on for Whitey Bulger and Catherine Greig. Police have traced
the couple to Sheridan, Wyoming; San Francisco; Gulfport, Mississippi; and Selden and
Holtsville, New York. The trail has been cold since July 1996. Bulger has a medium athletic
build and often wears a baseball cap and sunglasses. He takes daily walks of 5-6 miles, and is
take the heart medication Atenolol. Bulger drives large luxury sedans and likes making
purchases with $100 bills. He has served time for several bank robberies. Bulger has used the
aliases and nicknames Jimmy, Jimmy-Boy, Jimmy Blue-Eyes, Thomas I'. Baxter, Tom Harris
and Mark Shapeton. He may still be traveling with his girlfriend Katherine Greig and he may be



taking medicine for a heart condition. Bulger is 74, 5'8" and 150-160 pounds. (See Shows #349,
#378, #481, #556, #574, #579, and #605. #623, #707, #733 and #760, OADs 1/21/95, 9/9/95,
1/24/98, 9/4/99, 1/29/00, 3/11/00, 9/23/00, 3/3/01, 2/22/03, 8/30/03 and 4/17/04)

MISSING:

Alexis “Lexi” Patterson

Age: 11 years now Height: 3°8”
Weight: 42 pounds

Alexis Patterson vanished on May 3, 2002. She was last seen at 8:00am when her stepfather
walked her to an intersection near the Hi-Mount Community School in Milwaukee, Wisconsin.
Alexis never made it to class and hasn’t been seen since. Alexis, who goes by the nickname
“Lexi”, has a scar under her right eye and a bump on her left pinky finger. She was last seen
wearing a red hooded jacket with gray stripes, a purple shirt, blue jeans and white Nike tennis
shoes, and she was carrying a pink Barbie book bag. She was wearing her hair in two braids and
a ponytail, (See Shows #675, #684, #765, #796 and #809, OADs 5/11/02, 7/27/02, 5/22/04,
2/26/05, and 6/18/05.) After an AMW airing, a prisoner in Louisiana told officials Alexis' body
could be found in a vacant Baton Rouge house. Milwaukee detective rushed to the scene. But
after several days of searching, police came up empty handed. The tip was false, and the
investigation was back at square one. According to police Alexis' stepfather, LaRon Bourgeois,
had a criminal background and served time in jail for drugs and driving a getaway car in a bank
robbery, during which a policeman was murdered. LaRon voluntarily took and passed a
polygraph test. On April 15, 2003, LaRon was charged with battery and disorderly conduct over
allegations of beating Alexis's mother. In the criminal complaint, Patterson claimed Bourgeois
had been selling drugs and "pimping several other women," and "has not comforted her during
the very difficult time of the disappearance of her daughter." Charges were eventually dismissed.

CAPTURED:

Calvin Allen Bennett (2 counts of Capital Murder) -- Ben and Mary O'Dell were an
elderly couple living out their golden years on their farm in Nashville, Arkansas. Police say they
probably had no idea that a soon-to-be killer was living in their barn. Calvin Bennett had
disappeared while serving probation for car theft, and sometime in September 2006, police
believe he made the O'Dell's barn his home and began a plot to rob them. On October 30, 2006,
Ben and Mary O'Dell were found brutally murdered in a wooded area outside their Nashville,
Arkansas home. Earlier that day, at about 6:30 a.m., Mary O'Dell's niece greeted her with her
daily morning phone call, which Mary ended abruptly. The niece didn't think much of it at the
time, but when she called again at about 4:00 p.m., no one answered. She was worried and went
to the O'Dell's house, but the couple wasn't home. After going to check the hospital, doctor's
office, and any other place the couple could be, she was left with nothing but a bad feeling. She
called one of Ben O'Dell's cousins to see if he could check the house once more. At Ben and



Mary's empty house, he walked outside and noticed some freshly cut wood by their back door
and thought the elderly couple might have gotten injured while chopping down a tree. At a trail
about 100 yards away from the house, he thought he saw two discarded scarecrows from the
watermelon patch. Then he saw a human hand. To his horror, he saw that the two figures weren't
scarecrows, but the bodies of Ben and Mary O'Dell. Police believe Bennett was in the O'Dells’
house when Mary's niece called. They say he took the couple's own gun and shot them each once
in the head. Police claim Bennett tied a rope to their legs, attached it to a 4-wheeler, and dragged
the couple, face down, to a place away from the house. According to the coroner's report, Mary
and Ben were likely still alive as they were being dragged through the rough terrain. Cops

say Bennett put a shopping bag over each of their heads, went back up to the house to clean up
the scene, took Ben's wallet and Mary's purse, and drove off in the couple's pewter/gray 2001
Chevy Silverado pick-up truck. His destination: Rose Hill, Va., and the home of Bessie, a woman
he met through a phone dating service. Evidentially, Bennett had blood on his clothing, so police
say he knocked on Bessie's neighbor's door and asked to use her shower. She refused to let him
in, so police say he waited two hours for Bessie to come home. Bessie wasn't happy to see him
and sent him away, then called Bennett's family. She knew Bennett was a low-life, but cops say
she was surprised to hear he was an accused killer. All she could tell them was that he was
driving a grayish pickup truck and didn't know where he was heading next. The last anyone saw
of Bennett was at Lou's Country Store in Rose Hill. He got jittery when he saw surveillance
cameras -- but he probably would have been even more nervous if he knew the store was owned
by a deputy sheriff who released the surveillance video to AMW. Bennett is 26 years old, 6°0”
and 153 pounds. (See show #870, OAD 11/18/06)

Note: If you have any information relating to fugitives or others featured on AMERICA’S MOST
WANTED, you may call 1-800-CRIME-TV.

Mailing address: America’s Most Wanted
P.O. Box CRIME TV
Washington, D.C. 20016

Or visit AMW on the World Wide Web at http.//www.amw.com
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AMERICA’S MOST WANTED — Show #874 (MW-2011) OAD 12/16/06

The following are the featured fugitives and others being sought by federal, state or local
authorities. The Update (if any) gives current status, previous references, or related
information.

Ronald Fischer (Escape) -- Authorities in East Greenwich, RI are on a nationwide
manhunt for Ronald Fischer. Fisher is a wealthy Rhode Island doctor and a convicted rapist.
Fischer started placing personal ads on-line in 1992 after he got divorced. According to officials,
in 1994, Fischer was charged with meeting a woman on-line and raping her aboard his yacht,
"The Lion King." Fischer was arrested and pled guilty to lesser charges to avoid jail time. In
2003, he met a college English professor on-line. He invited her to his yacht and wooed her with
drinks and dinner. However, the romantic date soon took a dangerous turn. Fischer forced
himself on the unsuspecting woman and raped her in the bedroom aboard his yacht. Fisher was
arrested, charged and his case went to trial in 2005. However, midway through the trial, Fischer
sent an e-mail to his attorney, telling him he was leaving the country. Fischer hasn't been seen or
heard from since. A jury convicted him in absentia of two counts of first-degree sexual assault
and one count of second-degree sexual assault, meaning that the former anesthesiologist could
face up to life in prison. Fischer is an intelligent man who is Ivy League-educated and had an
impressive career as a doctor. He was chief of the OBGYN anesthesia department at the Rush
University Medical Center in Chicago and chair of the anesthesiology department at Pawtucket's
Memorial Hospital in Rhode Island. He also held the rank of an assistant professor of
anesthesiology at Brown University Medical School. Fischer has plenty of money and lots of
worldwide connections. Fischer’s victims say that he has a pock-marked face, a bad comb-over, a
fiery temper and described himself as "handsome, blue-eyed and loveable" in the personal ads he
posted on websites and in newspapers throughout the New England area. Fischer is balding and
has red hair that may appear blond. Fisher enjoys playing computer chess, playing tennis, and
working out with a trainer. He also enjoys boating and spending time on the water. Authorities
believe he may be hiding out in a marina. People who know Fisher say that he passionately



denounces France for not supporting the war in Iraq. Fischer is 50, 5°10” and 180 pounds. (See
Show #804 and #846, OADs 5/14/05 and 4/15/06)

Unknown Atlantic City Killer (Murder) -- On November 20th, two women walking
along a dirt road in Egg Harbor Township, N.J. -~ just west of Atlantic City -~ stumbled upon the
body of a woman. When police arrived and began searching the area for clues, they discovered
another body, then another, and another. By the time they'd combed through the crime scene,
police had discovered the bodies of four women, all murder victims. Investigators say each body
was found face down in several inches of water in a ditch behind a strip of seedy motels,
places notorious as hangouts for drug addicts and prostitutes. The details of the crime scene are
eerie. According to investigators, each body was dumped about 60 feet from the last, and all of
their faces were positioned in the same peculiar way -- with their heads facing east, toward
Atlantic City. All of the victims were wearing clothes on their bodies, but were all missing their
shoes and socks. Medical examiners told police that the women were not killed at the same time,
although it appears that they were all killed within a month of one another. Investigators knew
the first step in their investigation would be to identify the four women -- a potentially difficult
task because the bodies were at various stages of decomposition when they were found. But
fortunately, authorities were able to quickly learn the victims' names: Kim Raffo, 35, Tracy Ann
Robetts, 23, Molly Jean Dilts, 20, and Barbara Breidor, 42. Police believe all four women were
drug addicts and prostitutes. Autopsies showed Tracy Roberts died of asphyxiation, and Kim
Raffo was killed by ligature strangulation. The cause of death of Molly Dilts and Barbara Breidor
has not yet been released. While authorities are hesitant to say there's a serial killer on the loose,
the similarity between the crimes is hard to ignore. And the word on the streets of Atlantic City
is that it's only a matter of time before the killer strikes again. Several prostitutes in the city have
mentioned other street walkers who have gone missing. One woman, who calls herself "Sheri,"
told AMW producers that two prostitutes, "Heather" and "Peaches," haven't been seen for quite
some time. Although these women could have left to try to get sober, may have picked up and
moved to a different area, or could possibly have quit hooking altogether, there's growing
concern that these missing women may have met the same fate as Kim, Molly, Tracy Ann, and
Barbara. Now, those who call the streets of Atlantic City home are sticking together more than
ever. According to "Chocolate," who works the streets daily, the working girls aren't going to
stop because of the murders. They know that each time they step onto the streets they're taking a
big chance -- but the cycle of drugs and cash is powerful and keeps them going.

Unknown Tim Edwards Killer (Homicide) and Tammy Dyer (Material Witness) -- Just
one visit to Montana Del Oso Ranch and Tim Edwards knew he had found a place to retire.
Captivated by the mountain scenery and golden sunsets, Tim purchased the ranch and moved
there with his wife Lynn in 1995, But the mountain paradise was hiding a deadly secret that the
Edwards would soon discover. The Edwards family picked up and left their Tucson home and
moved to the 40,000 acre ranch located just outside of Silver City, NM. The couple of nearly 40
years worked side-by-side from sun-up until sun-down. Together, they built their dream home
and started living their dream lifestyle. But on December 30, 2005, their dreams were shattered.
That day, Tim left the ranch and trekked into town to run some errands. After a long day, Tim
phoned Lynn to say he was headed back to the ranch and would be home in about 30 minutes.
But after more than an hour passed, Lynn became concerned. She knew she had to brave the dark



and go look for her husband. After scanning the dark, dirt road for a few miles, Lynn found
Tim's truck., But Tim wasn't inside. Lynn started to search the woods and soon found her
husband's body laying face down, She immediately called for help, but it was too late. When
detectives arrived they learned Tim had suffered multiple stab wounds and Lynn says he had
nearly been decapitated. Days later a man called cops to say his son had confessed to killing Tim
Edwards. Cops say Allen Snyder told them that his son Michael James Snyder had confessed to
the murder. But by the time police brought Michael Snyder in for questioning, cops say he had
changed his story. According to detectives, Snyder told them that on the night Tim died, he had
been partying on some land near the Edwards' ranch. But he says he wasn't there alone. He told
detectives he was with a woman named Tammy Lin Dyer and two men -- Archie and Rusty. He
said everyone was using crystal meth when suddenly, a truck pulled up alongside them. Snyder
told detectives that Archie approached the truck and killed the driver. Although Snyder recanted
his confession and blamed Tim's death on someone else, police charged him with an open count
of murder and went to look for Archie, Rusty and Tammy. But shortly after police charged
Snyder, he changed his story again. He told cops he wasn't on Bear Mountain the night Tim died.
Not only that, he also told police that Archie and Rusty don't exist and that he made them up.
Police searched the town of Silver City and surrounding areas for Archie and Rusty, but could
never find anyone who fit the description. But that wasn't the case for Tammy Lin Dyer. Cops
went to the house where Tammy had been living, but by the time they arrived, she had vanished
without a trace. Unfortunately, that was terrible news for police. Cops charged her as a material
witness in the case and say Tammy is their last hope of really finding out what happened on the
night Tim Edwards died. After digging into Tammy's background, detectives say they learned
about a troubled woman with a shady past and nomadic lifestyle. Police say Tammy Dyer has a
laundry list of sugar-daddy boyfriends -- who are typically older men, Cops say Tammy lives
with these men and uses them for their money, that way she won't have to apply for an apartment
or credit cards --- making it harder for cops to catch up with her. And while police say Tammy
isn't necessarily the marrying kind, she likes to take on the last names of her boyfriends, making
it more difficult for people to know her true identity. Police say she has ties to Wisconsin, but
could be anywhere in the United States. Police say she's also an alcoholic who can't go long
without a drink. And while cops have several photographs of her, police say her looks have
probably deteriorated over time due to heavy drug and alcohol abuse. Tammy Lin Dyer is 38-
years-old, has brown hair and blue eyes. She has a tattoo on her right arm and on her upper right
back. Cops say catching up with Tammy could help them solve a tragic murder mystery.

David Greth (Rape, Object Penetration) -- Victims of child sexual abuse, especially very
young victims, are usually plagued for the rest of their lives by the pain, anger, and humiliation
they feel as a result of their exploitation. Putting the abuse behind them is one of the first steps
toward recovery, but for many victims, that's not an option -- because their abusers are too
cowardly to face their actions. When someone accused of sexually abusing a child evades the
law, they're not only endangering more innocent children in society, they're standing in the way
of their victims' complete recovery. That's why police in Portsmouth, VA are trying to track
down David Wayne Greth -- a man cops say subjected two little girls to years of sexual abuse,
and then fled to avoid his charges. According to police, authorities got involved immediately
after the girls' parents found out about the alleged abuse in 2006. Cops started building a case
against Greth, and police say the accused child rapist knew charges were coming. So cops say



Greth sold all of his assets, including his house and van, and vanished. Now, police are hunting
Greth in order to make sure the fugitive serves time for his alleged crimes, and to ensure that his
alleged victims receive the justice they deserve.

Carlos Strong (Firearms Possession by Felon) -- On October 25, 2005, 27-year-old
Angela McCullough's ten-year relationship with her boyfriend, Corey Riddick, came to a
sudden end. Unlike some relationships that end with an argument and a broken heart, this one
ended tragically, with a bullet and an untimely death. In early October 2005, Corey got into
an argument with Carlos Strong in the parking lot of Angela's Detroit apartment. Cops say
Strong returned to the area several times, looking for Corey, even shooting at him on one
occasion. No one was injured... that time. Despite the risk, cops say Corey continued to come to
the area to visit his girlfriend and their two children. Just after midnight on October 24, 2005,
cops say the beef between Strong and Corey reached a deadly conclusion. As Corey and
Angela pulled up to the lot of her apartment, investigators say Carlos Strong waited in his SUV.
When Corey spotted Strong, cops say he slammed their car into reverse, trying to get away from
the alleged assassin. Then, police say, Strong jumped out of the driver's seat and opened fire,
spraying bullets into Corey's vehicle. Angela was shot in the chest, an unfortunate victim caught
in the crossfire of bullets that were meant for her boyfriend. Corey rushed Angela to the hospital,
but it was too late to save the young mother. She died in the emergency room. Carlos Strong
bolted from the scene and hasn't been seen since. He has a small scar on his left cheek.

Dennis Harvey (Aggravated Kidnapping) -- Cops in Austin say that around 3:30 p.m. on
Nov. 3, 2006, a man named Dennis Harvey approached a 44-year-old woman at a Chevron gas
station and attempted to take her car. According to investigators, Harvey fired a shot that hit the
woman in the chest. As the wounded woman was lying next to her car, cops say Harvey got out
of her car and ran towards a man, who had just pulled up in his work truck to the gas station's
convenience store and had left his car running. But cops say when the man realized that Harvey
had a gun, he ran into the store. Police believe Harvey took advantage of this situation, getting
into the man's truck and taking off. However, he didn't drive for very long. Cops believe he
dropped the car and then approached another woman and forced her at gun point to take him to a
restaurant in downtown Austin. But cops say that was not enough for Harvey. According to
Austin Police, at around 5:00 p.m. on that same day, Harvey approached another woman who
was in her car at a drive-in restaurant. Harvey demanded her to leave the car, but since she
refused, cops say, Harvey pulled her out by the hair, hit her in the face several times, and finally
fled in the car. The car was later found in Harvey's hometown, Palacios, Texas. Police believe
Harvey's relatives drove Harvey, the following day, to Freeport, Texas where he was supposed to
get on a fishing vessel. And that was the last time Harvey was seen. Cops say Harvey grew up in
Texas and worked in shrimp and tuna boats growing up. Now, they believe he is living in his
habitat -- a fishing vessel in the Gulf of Mexico.

Larry Porter Chism (Escape) -- Larry Chism was serving a 40-year sentence for armed
robbery, narcotics and violation of age of consent when he escaped on September 13, 1978, from
the Turney Center in Only, Tennessee. During a bowling outing for inmates, Chism and three
other inmates overpowered guards and fled with a hostage. After stealing a car from a fast food
restaurant, Chism hijacked a plane to his home state of Arkansas. Chism was later captured and



pled guilty to kidnapping, and was sentenced to 30 years on November 9, 1978. He was placed
in the Lonoke County, Arkansas jail but almost two months later, on December 22, 1978, Chism
escaped again. In January 1990, federal agents located Chism in Charlotte, North Carolina,
living with Debra Brookins and using the alias Kenneth Lamara Brookins. In December 1990,
Chism had traveled to Atlanta, Georgia where he sold his vehicle. In Charlotte, Chism and his
girlfriend Debra Brookins were connected to a local charity called Christians United for People.
Chism has scars on both arms. He wears thick prescription glasses or contact lenses. He is a
heroin addict who has operated a drug ring with teen heroin addicts, and also smokes marijuana.
He has a BA in accounting and three years of law school, and was the former editor of a prison
newspaper. He has worked as a carpenter in warm weather climates. He enjoys hunting, fishing,
tennis, swimming, watching TV and reading. He served time in Vietnam, and frequently wears
baseball caps. Authorities report Chism has a bullet-proof vest and a police scanner. He is
known to frequent flea markets and auctions. Chism is 57, 5'10" and 150 pounds. (See Shows
#341, #375, #539, #627, and #743, OADs 11/19/94, 8/5/95, 4/24/99, 3/31/01 and 12/6/03.)

Walter-Arlequin-Sanchez (Money Laundering and Drug trafficking) -- The IRS, US
Marshals, and the DEA have all joined together in the relentless search for Walter Sanchez and
his cohorts, who are connected to a billion dollar drug conspiracy. They say Sanchez and more
than twenty of his buddies are linked to the Quasand Lewis Drug Organization. Authorities say
they are working hard to make sure every last one of the members of the conspiracy gets what
they deserve... a long time behind bars. Sanchez's name was first brought to the attention of
police in August 2004. Around that time a shipment of 2,000 pounds of marijuana had arrived in
Detroit. Marshals say they were keeping a close eye on the delivery to see who would be the
unlucky guy to pick it up. They say that it turned out to be Sanchez and his pal Giovanni
Ruanova. After picking up the bundles of marijuana that had been shipped all the way from
Mexico, the DEA says Sanchez met Ruanova in a hotel room. Agents believe they met to
discuss the sale of the merchandise, which had a total value $1.45 million. The payment was so
large that it took the entire bed of a pick-up truck to transport it all. When Sanchez left the hotel
and hit the road with the money, cops were following close behind. Once Sanchez made it
through Ohio, police turned on their lights to make it look like a routine traffic stop.

Then, investigators say they forced Sanchez out of the car while they searched for the

money. Unfortunately, agents say they were about to walk away empty-handed. At the last
minute, their trusty police dog sniffed out something in the bed of the truck. Police arrested
Sanchez under suspicion and he was hauled away to jail. The vehicle was confiscated for

further investigation along with six cell phones in his possession. Police hit the jackpot

when they tore apart the vehicle and discovered there was money stashed away under the bed of
the truck. Then, after slashing his tires, they found an additional $4000. When the DEA
questioned Sanchez, he told them he was taking the money on a vacation to Miami ... but they
knew better. Sanchez posted bond while agents continued to investigate. Marshals say he took
off running shortly after paying the bail. The DEA believes Sanchez was last seen in Mexico in
March 2006 after attending his father's funeral. They believe he may still be hiding out there, and
he could be with Ruanova, who is also a fugitive. Agents need a lot of help finding Sanchez,
because they believe he may have had cosmetic surgery. They're not sure what he's had done, but
they think that he has altered his appearance. He is 36 years old, 5°11” and 175 pounds.



Unknown Stephen Cooper Killer (Homicide) -- When Stephen Cooper didn't show up
for an airport rendezvous and family dinner on September 22, 2005, friends and family were
concerned. Cooper's parents had expected to hear from their son and when they didn't, calls were
made to Stephen's children and friends. The next day, with still no sign of their son, the Coopers
filed a missing persons report with the Riverside County Sheriff's department. Cops say that
Cooper spoke with family on the phone on September 22nd and the last time anyone saw him
was later that same day when he checked on some rental property he managed in Rancho Mirage,
CA. But authorities couldn't find any sign of the missing 52-year-old and the trail would go cold
for months. That is until police received a call that would lead them to the remains of Stephen
Cooper and the hunt for his killer would begin. On February 23, 2006 -- about five months after
his mysterious disappearance, police finally learned the whereabouts of Stephen Cooper.
According to police, a dog dropped a severed and dehydrated forearm at the feet of his
owner in Morongo, California. After a search of the surrounding area, police soon found the
remains of Stephen Cooper in a rock quarry close to the western edge of the Morongo Indian
reservation. Police say his clothing, wallet, and driver's license were found at the scene.

The discovery was a turning point in the investigation, changing it from a missing person's case
to a mysterious homicide. Cops say that the condition in which the body was found warrants a
murder investigation, however, there have been no recent developments and few clues as to who
may have killed him. Police are hoping for the public's help in figuring out the events
surrounding Stephen Cooper's death. One possible motive might be that Stephen was killed for
his truck. Police have not been able to locate his burgundy 2000 Chevy S-10 pick-up. Locating
that truck might help cops answer many of the questions that remain in this mystery.

MISSING:
Bryan Dos Santos-Gomes Update
Age: 0 years Weight: 12 pounds

Authorities in Ft. Myers, Fla. have issued an AMBER Alert for Bryan Dos Santos-Gomes -- an
infant who wasn't even a month old when cops say an unknown female suspect held his mother at
knifepoint and abducted him. According to police, the woman who snatched the baby was
between 28 and 30 years old, and stood about 5 feet 4 inches tall. She was reportedly wearing a
black T-shirt and had black straight hair pulled back partially in a bun. Cops say the woman
pulled a knife on Bryan's mother during the abduction and should be considered armed and
dangerous. Witnesses say the suspect had spoken to the mother at a bus stop and had followed
her bus once the mother got on. The suspect had a child safety seat in her car along with a bag of
diapers, leading police to believe the abduction had been planned in advance. Police say the
woman was driving a black, two-door SUV with old tinted windows that could be peeling. (See
Show #873, OAD 12/9/06). AMW learned that Gomes was targeted by a group of human
traffickers. Valter Coelho, age 45, is suspected.



Note: If you have any information relating to fugitives or others featured on AMERICA’S MOST
WANTED, you may call 1-800-CRIME-TV.

Mailing address: America’s Most Wanted
P.O. Box CRIME TV
Washington, D.C. 20016

Or visit AMW on the World Wide Web at http://www.amw.com



I NTEROFFICE MEMDO

FOX BROADCASTING COMPANY
A UNIT OF FOX TELEVISION

ro. Fox Affiliates
rrov: Alison Brown
pare: December 19, 2006

susecr: AMERICA’S MOST WANTED

The attached documents provide a brief description of each segment of AMERICA’S
MOST WANTED as broadcast each Saturday. You may find these documents of value in
supplementing your station’s news/public affairs files when you submit your Quarterly Issues
report to the FCC. As a part of your public file, the information may be a resource in the national
and local efforts to make America a safer place.

If you have any questions or suggestions regarding the information provided, please
contact your Affiliate Relations representative or Alison Brown, Fox Broadcast Standards, at
(310) 369-3768.



